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THE OTHER LUNA FAMILY

THE MATERNAL ANCESTRY OF MIGUEL DE SAN JUAN

By

Margaret L. Buxton

-1991-

Miguel de San Juan was born in El Paso del Norte of
unknown parents. He is the ancestor of many New Mexicans.
On 28 April 1710, Miguel de San Juan's intention to wed was
reviewed by church authorities. This marriage intention
investigation, or "diligencia.” was taken in Bernalillo and
is found in NEW MEXICO ROOTS, LTD.. by Fray Angelico Chavez,
Vol. IX. p. 1775, #9. The "diligencia” was intended to
prevent bigamies and marriages of closely related couples.
In 1710 Miguel de San Juan was 17 or 18 years old, born in
1692 or 1693.

The bride of Miguel de San Juan was Isabel Montoya,
daughter of Capt. Diego Montoya and Josefa de Hino jos.
Those giving information about the couple were: Jose de
Quintana, Notary; Capt. Juan Gonzales-Bas (40): Joseph Lopez
(60): and Ignacio Aragon (50): all of Bernalillo. The
couple were married on 5 May 1710, and the "padrinos” or
godparents who were personal attendants at the ceremony were
Manuel Baca and Josefa Baca.

In Spanish parish registers there are often missing
sections. and the only recourse for tracing ancestry is
through the "padrinos"” who are found on all baptisms and
many marriages. The "padrinos”™ are generally either blood
relatives or in-laws.
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The ancestry of Miguel de San Juan has been a most
intriguing mystery. His children used the names San Juan,
Montoya. Luna, Alvares de Luna. and Muniz de Luna. The only
child specifically recorded as belonging to Miguel de San
Juan and Isabel Montoya is their daughter, Margarita de
Luna. Margarita is found in the "diligencia” of her
proposed marriage to Esteban Duran, 17. The bride is 15.
The date was 17 January 1727. It is located in NEW MEXICO
ROOTS, LTD., by Fray Angelico Chavez, Vol. III. p. 447.
Margarita de Luna is shown as the widow of Duran in the will
of her second husband. Pedro Martin Serrano. 1768. Corral de
Piedra. Santa Clara. In this record. Miguel de San Juan.
father of the bride, holds the military title of "Alferez."
The will of Pedro Martin Serrano is located in Piedre Lumbre
Grant, Surveyor General Records, Private Land Claims. Report
30, File 33. Frames 68 to 76.

The other children are ascertained by the use of their
many surnames and appearances as padrinos. Joachin de Luna
is a padrino with Isabel Montoya. Widows appeared as
padrinos only with their sons. The relationships between
couples and padrinos are shown in records later in this
article.

Miguel de San Juan is a notary in a "diligencia” taken
on 28 November 1720 in Albuquerque, where he is referred to
as "Notary at Isleta.” See NEW MEXICO ROOTS. LTD.. By Fray
Angelico Chavez, Vol. IV, p. 594. Being a notary would
indicate Miguel de San Juan could read and write. Education
in those times was costly and limited to people of means.

While reading an English transalation of THE SPANISH
ARCHIVES OF NEW MEXICO. Vol. I. Archive No. 1343. located in
the New Mexico State Archives, a most interesting fact
appeared. This document dealt with a lawsuit between Santo
Domingo and Cochiti Pueblos over lands sold to Cochiti by
Juana Baca. It took place on B June 1722 at Santo Domingo
Pueblo. The Lieutenant General. Rael de Aguilar, "Called in
Miguel de San Juan. a son of Juana Baca. so he may declare
the lands which his mother sold. their limits and
boundaries.”

"Miguel de San Juan appeared before Aguilar being fully
apprised of the above he declared that the land which his
mother sold to the Indians of Cochiti are on the other side
of the Rio del Norte.” and the lands in litigation and which
the Santo Domingo Indians claim to have a right to are not
included with the lands she sold to Cochiti. Miguel de San
Juan states that the title of the grant she sold is now in
possession of the Indians of Cochiti. The suit was settled
to the satisfaction of both parties.
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In early Bernalillo records it shows Miguel de San Juan
as a "padrino” with Juana Baca on 12 May 1704, 30 October
1705, and 10 February 1708. On 5 May 1710. in Bernalilleo,
Miguel de San Juan was married. with "padrinos”™ Manuel Baca
and Josefa Baca in attendance.

Two women named Juana Baca lived at this time. Fray
Chavez placed one as the daughter of Manuel Baca and Maria
de Salazar. The other Juana was the daughter of Jose Baca
and Josefa Pacheco. This Jose Baca was killed in El Paso
and was the brother of the above Manuel Baca.

After much study and evaluation, the Juana Baca who was
the daughter of Jose Baca has been eliminated as the mother
of Miguel de San Juan. Her records are shown in an appendix
to this article.

Thanks to Mr. Jonathan Ortega of Albuquerque., who
brought to my attention further land grant data establishing
which Juana Baca was the mother of Miguel de San Juan. Her
recorded background was greatly expanded by this material.
Mr. Ortega located the material in the vast reference work,
FOUNDERS OF ALBUQUERQUE. which was compiled by Mr. Donald
Dreeson of Albuquerque and is located in the Special
Collections Branch of the Albuquerque Public Library at 423
Central Avenue NE.

Before going into this new land grant data. we must
first examine the other available sources relating to this
Juana Baca. This material will be divided into four parts:

Juana Baca: Her Real Parents; Her Daughters.
The Chavez Connection.

A.
B.
C. The Erroneous Tie to Francisco Xavier.
D.

The Luna Connection.
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A. Juana Baca:; Her Real Parents:; Her Daughters.

Juana Baca and Her Real Parents:

In the 1692 Census of Guadalupe del Paso
(reproduced in Mid-America Magazine, Vol. 23, January 1941,
translated by J. Manuel Espinosa. copy of which is located
at UNM Special Collections, Zimmerman Library, Albuquerque)
we find Manuel Baca. supposed father of Juana Baca. listed
in the sub-locality, Real de San Lorenzo as follows:

Real de San Lorenzo:

Manuel Baca, married to Maria de Salazar,
with 3 sons and 3 daughters:

Antonio 9 years Maria 13 years*
Diego 1 year Josepha 7 years
Gregorio 3 years Bernardina 5 years

Manuel is ready to resettle in New Mexico
if given help.

*This Maria is Maria Magdalena (the first) who is
referred to on p. 141 of ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES by

Fray Angelico Chavez.

In the 1697 Census of Santa Fe (Archivo General de
Indias, Guadalajara Legato 141, Document #20, copy located
in the Special Collections Branch of the Albuquerque Public
Library. 423 Central Avenue NE) under the heading. "Families
From Zacatecas and Sombrerete.” p. 57. #184:

Manuel Baca. his wife Maria., his children:
Antonio, Gregorio, Diego*, Manuel®, Juan*,
Josepha. Bernarda.

*Diego and Manuel are one person, and Juan is
Manuel ‘s son Juan Antonio Baca. See ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO

FAMILIES by Fray Angelico Chavez, p. 141.

At #185 and next door:

Joseph Vasquez and his wife, Maria.
(See Maria Baca--Maria Magdalena above.)

There is no Juana in the household of Manuel Baca
in either 1692 or 1697. Captain Manuel Baca’'s mother., Dona
Ana Moreno de Lara, is found in the 1692 Census of Guadalupe
del Paso (See previous reference for source.) p. Bl, Ysleta.
This is located in present Texas, settled by Indians fleeing
from Isleta in New Mexico during the Pueblo Indian Revolt.
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Dona Ana Moreno de Lara, married to
Cristoval Baca, 5 years absent from these
parts. now residing in Pasaxe with two
daughters who live with him, Juana, 18,
and Luisa, 17.

Also, Dona Ana has two sons absent.
Francisco, married, lives at the mines of
Cusiguriache. The other, Pedro Vaca, also
married, lives in the Real of Parral.

In Dona Ana’'s house are two orphans. Pedro,
age 5, and Elena, age 12, and Dona Ana's
granddaughter, Josepha, age 5.

Further details of Juana Baca appear in Donald
Dreesen’'s research. It must be noted here that the
following land grant reel and frame numbers are that of the
"0ld University of New Mexico Series.” In the last four
years, they have been totally renumbered by J. Richard
Salazar, Chief of Archival Services at New Mexico State
Records Center and Archives in Santa Fe. Mr. Salazar also
compiled the catalog for the new system. The "old" series
used here were located at the Special Collections Branch of
the Albuquerque Public Library in March of 1991. Again.
thanks to Mr. Jonathan Ortega for securing copies of
critical land grant pages for this compiler.

In the El Ranchito Land Grant, Reel 49, Case 157,
Frame 613 (old series) 23 August 1713, Capt. Manuel Baca of
Albuquerque gives his part of certain land to his sister,.
Dona Juana Baca. in San Francisco de Bernalillo. called San
Antonio de la Angostura, which Manuel Baca and Juana Baca
bought from Capt. Don Fernando Duran y Chaves. Juana Baca
is referred to as sister of Manuel Baca at least three times
on this frame. Manuel says he is giving her this land,
"upon account of the great esteem and affection I have for
her and for the many kindnesses and benefits I owe her.”

Frame 633 (old series) states Manuel and Juana
Baca bought the land from Chavez in 1706, and, on this page,
Juana is called his sister once again.

The Juana Baca Land Grant is also called the
Pueblo de Cochiti Grant (Sur. Gen. Records, Court of Private
Land Claims, Reel 50, Case 172, Frame 218). Cochiti Pueblo
sought confirmation of a grant made by Pedro Rodriguez
Cubero. Governor and Captain General of New Mexico. to Juana
Baca, which she sold to Cochiti, and confirmation of a grant
made on 16 July 1766 to the Pueblo of Cochiti. They wished
to establish that these grants were made at different times
to different people and should be considered separately.
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The Juana Baca petition lacked dates or boundaries and no
proof of the grant was in force when New Mexico became U.S.
territory. so a decree of confirmation could not be given.

Juana Baca and Her Daughters:

Juana Baca is called the daughter of Manuel Baca
and Maria de Salazar by Fray Angelico Chavez in ORIGINS OF
NEW MEXICO FAMILIES. p. 144. Juana is shown with two
daughters, Juana the younger, married to Francisco Duran y
Chaves, and Antonia, who was the second wife of Antonio
Duran y Chaves. brother of the above Francisco.

Fray Chavez states that. "Relationships of mother
and daughters are deduced from Chavez family charts.3®" 1In
Note 35 on page 145 of the above source. the sources listed
are as follows:

1. Spanish Archives of N.M.. Vol II. #437.

2. Marriage Investigation of Jose Baca and
Juana Chaves, 1766.

3. Marriage Investigation of Juan Antonio
Baca and Barbara Montoya. 1735.
(This was actually 1770.)

We will examine these one at a time.

1. Spanish Archives of N.M.., Vol II. #437:

22 January 1741

Trial of Juan Marquez and Francisco Xavier
(also called Francisco Xavier Anaya) for the murder of
Magdalena Baca. wife of Juan Marquez. The men served two
years in prison and were then exiled. Marquez was sent to
the Pueblo of San Augustin de la Isleta and Xavier to the
Pueblo Nuevo de Nuestra Senora de la Concepcion in the
Puesto called Thome Dominguez.

The archive was 47 pages long, and line by
line., no mention was made of Juana Baca. The deceased
Magdalena's brother. Jose Baca. is found there and Josefa
Baca, no relationship stated. requested the return of an
item loaned to the deceased. Perhaps this record belonged
to another reference and was misplaced.
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2. NEW MEXICO ROOTS, LTD. by Fray Angelico
Chavez, Vol. I. p. 159. Marriage Investigation:

15 September 1766, #15, Albuquerque

"Jose Baca. (25), Spaniard of N.S. del Rio
Puerco, son of Capt. Marcos Baca and Maria Jaramillo. and
Juana Chaves., (14), of Atrisco, daughter of Ignacio Baca and
Gregoria Maese. Pair related. closed 4th degree
consanguinity as follows:” (The graph is shown exactly as
it appears in the book. but there are some discrepancies to
be discussed after this graph appears.)

Manuel Baca

[ 1
Juana Baca the Elder (brother and sister) Manuel Baca

l
Juana Baca the Younger {1st cousins) Gregorio Baca
| |
Ignacio Baca (2nd cousins) Marcos Baca

Witnesses: Pedro Jose Pino, Notary; Felipe Silva (60), of
Tome: Don Isidro Sanchez Banares de Tagle (66) of Alameda;
Francisco Silva. (The witnesses gave the information. The
Silvas were relatives of the groom’'s mother.)

The graph should read in this manner:

Cristoval Baca
Consanguinity

-
lst degree:
Juana Baca the Elder (brother and sister) Cpt. Manuel Baca

2nd degree:
Juana Baca the Younger (1st cousins) Gregorio Baca

3rd degree:
Ignacio Chaves (2nd cousins) Marcos Baca

l
4th degree:
Juana Chaves (3rd cousins) Jose Baca
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Capt. Manuel Baca was married to Maria de Salazar (See
ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES by Fray Angelico Chavez,
p- 141). He was the son of Cristoval Baca and Ana Morena de
Lara. Manuel and Maria are found in a 1692 Census with a
son Gregorio Baca, age 3 (p. 4 of this work).

Records of Gregorio Baca in Bernalillo Roman Catholic
Parish Register, show he was a "padrino™ in 1707 and 1709
when he appeared with his mother, Maria de Salazar.
Gregorio Baca married Ignacia Romero in 1712. (The record
is crossed out, but a note says the marriage would be
recorded in the new book, which is now lost.)

Marcos Baca married Maria Jaramillo/Silva in 1734 at
San Felipe de Neri., Albuquerque. His age was 48 when he
witnessed a marriage investigation of 1766, so he was born
about 1718.

The dates provided for those on the preceeding graphs
should establish the true identities of the principal people
and place them in the proper time frames.

3. NEW MEXICO ROOTS., LTD., by Fray Angelico
Chavez, Vol. I, p. 161:

10 August 1770, #3 Albuquerque
(Reference note said 1735.)

"Juan Antonio Baca (32), son of Dona Antonia
Baca (only), and Dona Barbara Montoya. Pair related 2nd and
3rd degree consanguinity.”

Antonia Baca (sisters) Juana Baca

Juan Antonio Baca (1st cousins) Lucia Chaves

The expanded graph would be as follows:

Consanguinity

lst degree: Antonia Baca (sisters) Juana Baca
2nd degree: Juan Antonio Baca (1st cousins) Lucia Chaves
Srd idegpee: . . o - o oL . = . . ow s - <Banbara Montoya

None of the three sources shown for Juana Baca and her
daughters give any proof as to the placement of Juana as a
daughter of Manuel Baca and Maria de Salazar.
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Another marriage investigation was brought to my
attention by Mr. Jonathan Ortega. This also deals with
Juana Baca or her sister Luisa Baca. NEW MEXICO ROOTS, LTD.
by Fray Angelico Chavez, Vol. I, p. 158:

1762, Isleta, #5.

"Baltazar Baca (37) of San Clemente, widowed
of Dona Manuela Rael de Aguilar, buried in Isleta Church,
son of Capt. Bernabe Baca and Dona Margarita Mata, both
deceased. and Dona Rafaela Baca (39) of San Clemente, widow
of Capt. Diego de Torres, buried in Isleta Church, daughter
of Don Juan Baca and Dona Petra Garcia Jurado, both deceased
Dispensed from 3rd degree consanguinity, reason being the
paucity of equal status in the Kingdom: Groom's grandmother
and bride’'s grandfather were brother and sister.”

Witnesses: Mateo Jose Pino, Notary:; Don
Isidro Sanchez de Tagle (62): Capt. Don Felipe Silva (57):
both of Tome and Sr. Francisco Silva (60).

The only possible development of this relationship is
through the Baca ancestry as shown on the following graph:

Cristoval Baca & Ana Moreno de Lara
1

[ 1
male & female (sister and brother) Manuel Baca

? Baca & Maria de Salazar

|
Bernarbe Baca (1st cousin) Juan Antonio Baca
& Margarita de Mata & Petra Garcia Jurado
Baltazar Baca (2nd cousin) Rafaela Baca
(born 1725) (Her grandfather and

groom’s grandmother
were bro. and sis.)

NEW MEXICO ROOTS, LTD. by Fray Chavez, Vol. I, p. 158.

1 December 1760, #3, Tome.

"Don Bernabe Baca (60), of San Clemente,
widowed of Dona Teresa Gutierrez, and Maria Josefa Sedillo
(18), Spanish, daughter of Capt. Antonio Sedillo and
Gregoria Gonzales Bas. Witnesses: Felipe Jacobo Romero,
Notary; Marcial Rael (51); Martin Montoya (40)."

Apparently a third marriage for Bernabe Baca:
Albuquerque Marriages, 9 December 1760
"Don Bernabe Baca and Josefa Sedillo.”

Witnesses: Domingo de Luna and Josefa Lucero.

(Domingo de Luna is a son of Antonio de Luna.)
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NEW MEXICO ROOTS. LTD.. by Fray Chavez, Vol. I, p. 156.

May 1718, #9, Albuquerque

"Bernabe Baca (22) and Dona Margarita de Mata
(14), dispensed from unspecified degree of consanguinity.
Witnesses: Jose de Quintana, Notary (Bernalillo): Juan de
Dios Martin. Notary of Albuquerque: Juan Griego (34);

Nicolas Lucero, (incomplete).”

Reconstruction:

Pedro Duran y Chaves & Elena Dominguez’

]
Fernando Chaves?®

[
Unknown Chaves'
& Lucia Hurtado®
Unknown? Female Baca®
(Sister of Baltazar Isabel Chaves®
Manuel Baca) de Mata® (Married 2nd,

Jacinto Pelaez)

Margarita de Mata®
1704)

Bernabe Baca®
(Born 1696) (Born

Married May 1718
Unspecified Consanguinity

1. Deductions. (See page 11.)
2. On other graphs in this work.
3. Shown on investigation above.
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B. The Chaves Connection.

The marriage of Antonia Baca. daughter of Juana
Baca, is found in NEW MEXICO ROOTS, LTD., by Fray Angelico
Chavez, Vol. II, p. 305. The marriage took place 23 March
1718. Antonia was 15 years old and of unknown parentage.
The groom was Antonio Duran y Chaves, widower of Maria
Magdalena Montano, and son of Don Fernando Duran y Chaves
and Dona Lucia Hurtado. The bride would have been born in
1703. Bride and groom were of 3rd degree consanguinity.

Dona Juana Baca, of unknown parentage. married
Francisco Duran y Chaves. son of Don Fernando Duran y Chaves
and Dona Lucia Hurtado. The marriage investigation took
place 26 April 1713 when the bride was 14 and the groom 20
plus. The bride was born in 1699 and was related to the
groom by 3rd degree consanguinity. (Source as above.)

Antonia Baca and her sister, Juana Baca the
younger, both of unknown parentage and each related to their
grooms by 3rd degree consanguinity. present a challenging
puzzle. Being second cousins. they share a common great-
grandparent. Between the daughter of Juana Baca and the
sons of Don Fernando Duran y Chaves and Lucia Hurtado, all
the lines in their ancestries (Ortiz., Baca, Moreno de Lara,
Hurtado. and Dominguez Mendoza*) fall short of the goal of a
common great-grandfather except for Chaves, and this would
demand a Chaves father for the daughters of Juana Baca.

(*To be explained later.)

Probing this situation required careful charting
of the early Chavez family shown in ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO
FAMILIES. pp. 19. 20, 21. 22; and CHAVEZ. A DISTINCTIVE NEV
MEXICO CLAN, both by Fray Angelico Chavez.

Thanks to Mr. Gerald Mandell of Albuquergue who
located and shared a very interesting page in the microfilm
of The Atrisco Land Grant Hearing (U.S. Surveyor General
Records. Court of Private Land Claims, Reel 37, Case 45,
Frames 727 and 728. new series):

28 October 1692, at Mejia to Governor and General
Diego de Vargas Zapata Luhan Ponce de Leon. Don Fernando de
Chaves requests. "...the other tract is also on the Rio
Grande., commonly called Atrisco. also of agricultural land
with its acequia madre (mother ditch) and this one in from
the bluff where there is an old house in which Juan de Perea
lived going down the riverside as far as some corrals which
Colonel Juan Dominguez. my brother-in-law, had and on said
tract my father., Don Pedro Duran y Chavez. lived and also
some other persons by permission.” (Gerald Mandell. Research
Consultant. Vargas Project. UNM, states that the Vargas
Journal confirms Vargas was at Mejia in 1692.)
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The above record was a certified copy of the
original. This was stated on the first page of the Atrisco
Land Grant Hearing. The original source for the document
was Book "C” of the U.S. Surveyor General Records of New
Merico. This book is in the State Records Center and
Archives, Santa Fe, New Mexico. Mr. J. Richard Salazar,
Chief of Archival Services, kindly located the pages needed,
pages 34B, 35, and 35B. The original record was apparently
an exact copy of a document brought into court and actually
written in 1692. This series appears to contain court
copies of all ancient documents presented at court.

The record of 1692, a petition made by the only
known Chavez to return to New Mexico, contradicts the Chavez
lineage established by Fray Chavez. It also identifies the
parents of the Chavez wife of Juan Dominguez Mendoza.

In CHAVEZ, A DISTINCTIVE NEW MEXICO CLAN, pp. 21,
37, and 42, Fray Chavez has now placed Augustin as a son of
the first Pedro Duran y Chaves rather than as a son of the
first Fernando Duran y Chaves. Fray Chavez has also placed
Cristoval Chaves as the first born son of the first Fernando
and the second Fernando as Fernando’'s second son, a reversal
of his original lineage plan. Adjusting the data from the
works of Fray Chavez and the document of 1692 will be
attempted in order to establish a framework showing the
relationships between the daughters of Juana Baca and the
sons of Fernando Chavez and Lucia Hurtado.

Sources for the following Reconstructed Chavez
Chart are as follows:

Atrisco Land Grant Hearings, U.S. Surveyor General
Records., Court of Private Land Claims, Reel 37, Case 45,
Frames 727 and 728, new series.

ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES by Fray Angelico
Chavez, pp. 19, 20, 21, and 22.

CHAVEZ, A DISTINCTIVE NEW MEXICO CLAN by Fray
Angelico Chavez, pp. 21, 37, and 42.
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guinity:

(1st
degree)

(2nd
degree)

(3rd
degree)

Pedro Duran y Chaves |

& Isabel BohTmuaz {Baca)

RECONSTRUCTED CHA/EZ CHART

Padrc Duran y Chaves Il
{b. 1827. In 1881 had

*10 childran, 1 undar arme”
Tc Mexiceo In 1884 )

Thmas

D. y Chaves
b. 1882
Hed 8 wile
in 1882.
To Mexice
in 1864.

Flrn:Ldo ]
D. y Chaves
b. 1861
m. Lucis
Hurtado
Returned to
New Mexico
in 1883.

Augustin Duran ¥y Chaves
To Parral in 16686.

Fernandc Duran y Chaves |

(b. 1817, d. by 1868}

m. Maris de Carabajsl

UnplTuld.

Fernandc Juan Jose Cristoval
D. ¥y Chaves D. y Chaves D. ¥y Chaves D. ¥y Chaves
af Taca b. 18683 Cousin of b. 1838
b. 1848-7 Toc Mexico Pedrc Varels Single
Toe Mexiceo in 18684. Had a wife in 18684 .

in 1684. and 8 children Not on List
in 1681. of 1860.
m. Ans Marquez
Cristovsl Camabajal
D. y Chaves Te Mexico
b. 1664 in 1884.
Te Mexico
in 1684.

LAA
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C. The Erroneous Tie to Francisco Xavier.

The problems involving Juana Baca seem to increase
with each new finding. 1In ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES by
Fray Angelico Chavez, on page 10, he states that Juana,
daughter of Cristoval Baca and Ana Moreno de Lara became the
wife of Francisco Xavier II. Juana was counted in the Baca
household of 1687 living with her mother, and Cristoval Baca
was not present. In 1692, Juana Baca was 18 and living with
her father in Pasaxe (near Cuencame) while her mother was in
Ysleta (del Paso).

Under Xavier, on p. 113, Fray Chavez states that,
in 1680. Francisco Xavier II "...was a widower with a child
of three or four years...." "In departing for New Spain
(Mexico), he left his child with relatives who brought her
back to New Mexico with the Reconquest. She was the Josefa
Xavier, orphan and poor, who married Luis Garcia in
Bernalillo in August 1704. Her mother was Juana Francisca
Baca; her father at this date was stationed at the Presidio
del Gallo in Nueva Vizcaya.”

NEW MEXICO ROOTS. LTD.. by Fray Angleico Chavez.
Vol. IV, p. 591:

"8 August 1704, #4, Bernalillo

Luis Garcia, 20. soldier of the Santa Fe Presidio.
son of Sargento Mayor Alonso Garcia and Dona Ana de Vera
Jorge, both deceased. and Josefa Xavier, now living in
Bernalillo, daughter of Francisco Xavier and Dona Francisca
Baca of New Mexico origin, now living at the Presidio del
Gallo. Nueva Viscaya....” The groom states he is related to
the bride. (There is no indication that the bride's mother
is dead on this record.)

Fray Chavez states on p. 181 of ORIGINS OF NEW
MEXICO FAMILIES that "Luis Garcia de Noriega married Josefa
Xavier y Baca, reared in the Valverde family...." Josefa
Xavier died on 20 January 1735. 1In the will of Luis Garcia
of 1737, he names his first wife as Josefa "Velarde."

Francisco Xavier had a three or four year old
child in 16B0 and was a widower. This child would have been
born around 1677-1678. How do we reconcile the fact that in
1680, Juana Baca, daughter of Cristoval Baca and Ana Moreno
de Lara. was six years old and could not possibly be the
"Francisca Baca” of the marriage investigation of 1704 and
the mother of Josefa Xavier. Further, Josefa Xavier. raised
by Valverdes., was returned to New Mexico with the Reconquest
of 1693. 1In 1692, Juana Baca. daughter of Cristoval Baca,
was living with her father in Pasaxe and neither a living or
dead mother of Josefa Xavier or wife of Francisco Xavier.
Juana Baca. daughter of Cristoval Baca, was not the
Francisca Baca who married Francisco Xavier.
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Capt. Francisco Xavier and his wife, Dona Francisca
Baca, were witnesses on 16 August 1684 at Real de San
Lorenzo to the marriage of Jose Baca and Josefa Perez
Pacheco. See NEW MEXICO ROOTS. LTD., by Fray Angelico
Chavez, Vol. I. p. 155. Juana Baca, daughter of Cristoval
Baca, was 10 years old that year.

14
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Alonac Baca & Unknown

Cristoval Bacs & Ana Morenc de Lars

Gllllllll Baca

MII'II.IJI Baca
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Joaa|Baca Luiaal Baca
m. Antanic m. Joaefa d. by 1727 Unmarried d. Oct 1887 m. Ignecic
Gallegos | Pachaco Had lands in m. Juana de Anaya Aragon
18 Nov 1884 Bernalillc. }
8an Lgrenm m. Maria de - TR E
Salszar-Hurtadao MIguLI de M'lLI'IlI -lnlnL the —a_c‘ri'-hd"
Juans Bsca d. by 1727 S8an Juan* Baca Youngar Bacs
m. Niccliss ‘ m m. 8Son of
Ortjz Il Antanic Fran- Lules,
[ Chaves clacc Juans,
a Maria Baca Frlnllnco lllu];m Tardiblo Duran ¥y ar
m. Josm G"“L Ortiz Ortiz Il Ortiz Chavas Catalina?
Joese Patrona
Antenie GQriege hntl;u Jan mnu OrLt- Hl];l- Jqufl ;Im
de la Baca Antonio Manuel oval lena Baca Magdalena
Fuente m. Maria Baca Bsca Bacs Baca m. Joae m. 1at
{Bucs) de m. Maria m. Maris m. Jose Antonic Diego Ant.
(natural) Aragcn Gallege de Vegs Vasquaz Garcis* Mantoys
in 1718 y Coca de Lamm In 1701 m. 2nd
*Conclusions from this resesrch. Juan Marquaz
ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES, Chavez, pp. 8-11, 141, 144, 24§

\AA!
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D. The Luna Connection.

The following extremely important material
appeared in the research of Mr. Donald Dreeson regarding
Juana Baca and was brought to the compiler’'s attention by
Mr. Jonathan Ortega.

Town of Atrisco Land Grant, Reel 37, Case 45,
Frame 758 (old UNM series):

"At this Hacienda of Sto. Thomas de Villanueva, on
25 April 1732, before me, Capt. Juan Gonzales Bas, Alcalde
Mayor and War Captain of the town of San Phelipe de
Albuquerque, and its jurisdiction, acting as Judge
Commissioner with two witnesses of my attendance for the
lack of a royal or public notary for there are none in the
kingdom, appeared Dona Ysabel Montoya, widow of the standard
bearer Miguel de San Juan, and Dona Josefa Baca, widow of
Juan Antonio Garcia* whom I certify I know, and said Dona
Ysabel Montoya stated. to wit: that she gave and did give by
royal sale to the said Dona Josefa Baca a suerta of land
that she has which she obtained as a gift from his mother,
Dona Juana Baca, and her brother Antonio de Luna, for the
three of them had bought the same from Capt. Juan Fernandez
for the sum of $400.00 in silver and gold in order to make
use of the sale partition. has been made between the parties
there accruing to each one of them their portion of 2025
varas each, and the said Ysabel sells her portion which said
varas are measured and marked out and marked with monuments
to the satisfaction of the parties and the said party sells
for the sum of $300.00.... The said party renounces (any
claim to the land) and declares that because she is poor and
without anything to support her children and thus she
conveys and transfers (the land) as has been stated: To wit:
(Frame 359) that these $300.00 received in goods of the
country according to their market value.... Cows at $20.00,
the oxen at $25.00. the sheeps at $2.00., a2 pattern of serge
with trimmings for $30.00, a lock of $6.00, etc..... All to
her satisfaction....and there was present her son-in-law.
Juan de Chaves** and she has consent of her heirs to sell.”
Witnesses were Joseph de Quintana and Geronimo Jaramillo.
Juan de Chaves signed for Ysabel Montoya as she did not know
how to write.

The Atrisco Land Grant tells us that Juana Baca
was not only the mother of Miguel de San Juan but was also
the sister of Antonio de Luna.

*See appendix.

¥*Near the end of this article is a marriage investigation
and marriage for Juan de Chaves and Rosa de San Juan/de
Luna. The above establishes the certain identity of Rosa.)
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In the 1692 Census of Guadalupe del Paso, p. 79,
in Ysleta (del Paso), an Antonio de Luna. age 15, is found
in the home of Capt. Diego de Luna. However, his mother,
Elvira Garcia., is named. The credentials of this Antonio de
Luna are in order, but he may be considered later as a
possible father of Miguel de San Juan. Ana Moreno de Lara,
mother of Juana Baca also lived in Ysleta (del Paso).

A second Antonio de Luna was 20 in 1718 when a
"diligencia” was taken over his proposed marriage to Jacinta
Pelaez, age 14. This Antonio de Luna was born around 1698
and was of "unknown parents.” This was a delicate way of
stating he was illegitimate, and the parents were certainly
known. This Antonio de Luna is the "brother” of Juana Baca.

NEW MEXICO ROOTS, LTD., by Fray Angelico Chavez,
Vol. VII, p. 1205:

3 December 1704, Bernalillo

Baltazar de Mata, son of Pedro de Mata and Ysabel
Martinez, both deceased., and Dona Ysabel de Chaves, daughter
of Don Fernando de Chaves and Lucia Hurtado. Ysabel de
Chaves is a widow of Jacinto Pelaez. (Witnesses omitted
here.) Pair married 14 January 1705 with witnesses Diego
Montoya and Josefa de Hinojos.

NEW MEXICO ROOTS, LTD., by Fray Angelico Chavez,
Vol. VI, p. 1029:

19 May 1718, #19, Albuquerque

Antonio de Luna, age 20, son of unknown parents,
and Jacinta Pelaez, age 14, daughter of Jacinto Pelaez,
deceased and Dona Ysabel Chaves. Dispensed with 3rd and 4th
degree consanguinity. The pair were married 29 May 1718.



THE LUNA-PELAEZ CONNECTION |

Pedro de Mata & Isabel Martinez

Baltazar de Mata

Fernando de Chaves & Lucia Hurtado

Isabel de Chaves

{Widow of Jacinto Pelaez)}

1

Married 14 January 1705
Witnesses: Diego Montoya & Josefa Hinojos

{1} Marriage Investigation
3 December 1704, Bernalillo
Witnesses: Pedro de Espinosa, Notary:
Pedro Lopez, 40;: Juan Gonzales, 36;

Jose Lopez, 60; Felipe Gutierrez, 30.
NEW MEXICO ROOTS, LTD., VOL. VII, p. 1208

Jacinta Pelaes m.
Antonio de Luna
28 May 1718 (2)

(2) Marriage Investigation
19 May 1718, Albuquerque, #19
Jacinta Pelaes{i4)} & Antonio de Luna{20}
Dispensed with 3rd and 4th

Degrees of Consanguinity
NEW MEXICO ROOTE, LTD., VOL. VI, p. 1028

Vol
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Consanguinity

Pedro Duran y Chaves |
3rd and 4th degrees

& Isabel BohTrquez (Baca)

Chavez
Consanguinity ]
Male 18t degree Pedro Duran y Chaves ||
Duran y Chaves brothers married Elena
] Dominguez rle Mendoza
Ana Moreno Cristoval Female 2nd degree Fernando Duran y Chaves
de Lara Baca Duran v Chaves ist cousins marrled LuTln Hurtado
Jua
o Antonio de Luna 3rd degree Ysabel Duran y Chaves
Baca
2nd cousisn married Jacinto Pelaes
b. 1674
brothar & alater |
S ard cousins acinta Pelaes, b. 1704
San Juan
b. 1692

HEW MEXICO ROOTS, LTD., Chavaz, Vel. I, p. 30¢
ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES, Chavez, pp. 18-22

EL RANCHITO LAND GRANT, Reel 48, Cese 187, Frame 813
ATRISCO LAND GRANT, Reel 37, Case 45, Frames 728-732, 737

491
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Consanguinity
3rd, 4th, 6th degrees Cristoval Baca a‘ Ana Ortiz

Baca

Consanguinity

Alonso Baca 1st degree
brother & sister

Cristoval Baca 2nd degree
married Ana ist cousins
Morero de Lara

Antonio de Luna Juana Baca 3rd degree
b. 1698 T 1674 2nd cousins
Miguel de San Juan 4th degree

b. 1682 3rd cousins

ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES, Chavaz

Baca: pp. 8-10, 143-144; Chaves: pp. 18-21, 160-162

EL RANCHITO LAND GRANT, Real 48, Case 157, Frame 613 {(cld series)
ATRISCO LAND GRANT, Reel 37, Case 45, Frames 727, 728

I

lsabel Borhorquez {(Baca)
married Pedro
Duran y Chaves |

Pedro Durmj y Chaves ||
married Eiena
Dominguez ro Mendoza

Fernando Duran y Chaves
married Luin Hurtado

Isabel Duran y Chaves
married JlTlmo Pelaes

Jacinta Pelaes
married, at age 14,
Antonio de Luna
in 1718

091
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In ancient records, "brother” could mean a
brother-in-law, but none of Juana Baca's sisters had married
Antonio de Luna. If Antonio de Luna had been a whole
brother, he would be a Baca. If he were a child of Juana
Baca's mother, only. he would have been a Moreno de Lara, or
a Trujillo, which was her actual name. It would seem
Juana’'s father, Cristoval Baca is the father of Antonio de
Luna. One would first imagine the mother of Antonio de Luna
was a Luna woman.

In the 1692 Census of Guadalupe del Paso, we find
in Ysleta (del Paso), in the same location as Ana Moreno de
Lara:

"Capt. Diego de Luna. married to Elvira Garcia,
two sons: Antonio 15 and Nicolas 5, a daughter Gregoria 24,
and in his house, his mother, Maria Jaramillo.

Servants: Juan 40, Juan Antonio 10, and six other
servants: Francisco 30. Juan 4, Thomasa 30, Maria 10, Juana
5, Josefa 1.

Capt Luna will gladly resettle in New Mexico, but
April is too soon. If the King helps him, he will go alone,
build a house and later bring his family."

There is a Bartolome de Luna, age 18, from Mexico
among those sent to fill the ranks of the Vargas expedition,
and this group were not the old, returning settlers. There
is no further record of this man. (Spanish Archives II,
#54c)

However, when Antonio de Luna and Jacinta Pelaez
were graphed with their known ancestors, it evolved that
Antonio de Luna’'s mother was a Chaves, the only mutual line
leading to a common great grandfather. The name Luna is
still a mystery.

Antonio de Luna was born in 1698. Cristoval Baca
died 11 April 1697. He was "a Spaniard of New Mexico; his
wife was Ana Moreno de Lara, living in El Paso.” The death
was recorded in Parral burials. Church of San Diego de las
Minas Nuevas (now Escobedo. north of Parral). (Courtesy of
Mr. Gerald Mandell of Albuquerque.)

The other Luna puzzle also remains. Miguel de San
Juan, son of Juana Baca, had several children who used the
name Luna, Muniz de Luna., Alvarez de Luna. Some used San
Juan and Montoya for their mother., Isabel Montoya. There
would seem to be a strong tie to a Luna family. Miguel de
San Juan never used the name Baca. as did Juana Baca's
daughters. Perhaps Bernabe Baca was their brother.
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The stage is set with Capt. Manuel Baca in Real de
San Lorenzo in the 1692 Census of Guadalupe del Paso and in
Santa Fe in a Census of 1697. His mother, Ana Moreno de
Lara., was in Ysleta (del Paso) in 1692 with Capt. Diego de
Luna and his family. Juana Baca. 18, and her sister, Luisa
Baca. 17. are in their father, Capt. Cristoval Baca’'s house
in Pasaxe in 1692. Miguel de San Juan was born in 1692.

Capt. Cristoval Baca probably was serving at the
Presidio of Nuestra Senora de la Limpia Concepcion del
Pasazre. Nueva Viscaya. now in the state of Durango. Mexico.
(Courtesy of Mr. Gerald Mandell.)



Records of Miguel de San Juan

ONMF=Chaves pe283

Miguel de San Juan was born in Guadalupe del Paso of unknown parentage.
He married Isabel Montoya in Bernalillo were he was living, in 1710.
D.M. 1710 #9. Their daughter Margarita de Luna married Estaban Duran in
1727 DM 1727 #6.

Bernalillo Bp, #65 12 May 1704
Phelipe HL Antonio Silva y Gregoria Ruiz
pads: Miguel de San Juan y Dona Juana Baca,.

Bernalillo Bpe # 91 30 Octs 1705
Francisca: Apache
Pads: Miguel de San Juan y Bernarda Baca

Bernalillo Bp. # 115 10 Feb. 1708
Juana, Esp. HL Antonio Gallego y Rosa Montoya
Pads: Miguel de San Juan y Juana de Luna

Bernalillo Bpe. # 116 10 Feb. 1708
Josefa of unknown parents
Pads: Miguel de San Juan and Juana Baca

Bernalillo Mar. # 30 8 May 1710
Miguel de San Juan con Isabel Montoya.

AFTER CORONADO by Alfred B, Thomas

P.91 28 August 1715 List of Settlers with Hurtado at Santa Fe going on
campaign against the Apaches Chipaines/or Limitas. Commander was General
Don Juan Paez Hurtadoe. #2 on list: Miguel de Sn Jua settler of Bernalillo.

P.91 30 August 1715 at Pueblo San Lorenzo de Picuris: Review of Soldiers,
Militia Men, Presidials under General Juan Paez Hurtado, Commanding Officer
of the Expedition to the Plains. Settlers from Albuquerque: #2 Sublieutenant
Miguel de San Juan, fully armed, 4 horses, 1 mule, lacking leather jacket.




Miguel de San Juan

After Coronado by Alfred Thomas. p. 88
Settlers with Juan Paez-Hurtado in
Santa Fe. 28 Aug 1715, who were going
on a campaign against the Apaches.
Among them, Miguel de San Juan, settler
of Bernalillo.

Origins of New Mexico Families by Fray
Angelico Chavez, p. 283

"In 1716 Miguel de San Juan took part
in the Moqui Campaign of that year.~

San Felipe de Neri Marriages, 28 Feb 1776
Joseph Antonio Baca of unknown parents

and Barbara Silba. daughter of Felipe Silba
and Juana Gallegos. Testigos: Francisco
Silba and Miguel de San Juan

San Felipe de Neri Marriages, 16 April 1776
Diego of unknown parents and Maria de la
Concepcion, daughter of Pedro Antonio and
Luisa Zamora. Testigos: Miguel de San Juan*
and Juan Joseph Duran y Chaves. (*If this is
the same man, he would now be about age 87.)



Kiva, Cross and Crown by John L. Kessel

Pe243/244 23 Sept.l692 "Having camped out of view of the Pueblo(Pecos)
Vargas and his soldiers received absolution from Fray Miguel Muniz de Luna.

P.252 De Vargas had a three man Chaplain corps. "Miguel Muniz de Luna min-
istered to the other detachment at Santo Domingo." The others were at Pecos.

P. 498 Graph of Priests at Pecos.
Miguel Muniz de Luna born at Puebla.

professed 13 Feb. 1684 Mexico City
To New Mexico: El Paso 1691

At Pecos: 1699-1700

Died: after 1729

Remarks: With Vargas 1692

P+538 Note 61 "There are four pages from the Pecos account book sewn in at
ke end of the Baptisms, marriages and burials found in AASF M-18 Pecos

- (box 11) They give the dates, between 1697 and 1699 on which each friar
signed in receipt.The six who served the mission 1697-1700 are as follows

( the first and last entries by each in extant, incomplete books of Bps, -
marriages and burials appear in parenthesis)eese«((I copy only Muniz de -
Luna))

Fray Miguel Muniz de Luna on 18 Sept. 1699 received 'this convento and
everything attached to it' from Damian and interpreter Rafael.(Nov.3,
1699-27.June 1700, including 34 marriages)



Records of Isabel Montoya

Bernalillo 26 April 1705
Salvador of unknown parents
Pads: Anto.? Gallego y Isabel Montoya

Abuquerque Bp. p.2 10 Jan. 1707
Maria Gregoria HL Baltazar Romero y Francisca Gongora.
Pads; Antonio Montoya y Isabel Montoya

Bernalillo 1 Sept. 1709
Maria Rosa H de unknown parents
Pads: el Capitan Diego Montoya y su hija Isabel Montoya

Bernalillo Mar. # 30 8§ May 1710
Miguel de San Juan con Isabel Montoya.

Twitchell Vol.I p.102 # 322

Manuela Garcia de las Ribas, Isabel Montoya y Francisco Quintana
Grant 1735 land opposite the town of Abiquiu.

Test: Antonio Montoya, Juan Lorenzo Baldes, Antonio Ulibarri.

Santa Clara Bpe pe62 27 June 1750
Joseph Artonio Esp. HL Sanniago Martin y Josefa Polonia Baldes
Pads: Nicolas Salazar y 1sabel Montolla

Santa Cruz 6 March 1739
Diego Antonio EL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads; Miguel Lucero y Isabel Montoya.

Santa Cruz_Bp. Pesls 13 July 1736
Feliciana HL Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara de Luna
Pads: Antonio de Salazar y Isabel Montoya

Santa Clara 10 April 1754
Jose Maria HL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads; Joachin de Luna y Isabel Montoya



Records of Margarita de Luna

Santa Cruz March 1735
Pedro: PNC
pads; Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna

Santa Cruz 6 March 1739
Diego Antonio HL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads: Miguel Lucero y Isabel Montoya

Santa Clara p.40 2 May 1743

Angela, Esp. of Abiquiu H de (Juan Pablo Martin) y Micaela Montoya
Pads; Pedro Martin y Margarita de Lunsz

Santa Clara 1743
Juan Baptiste Serna con Francisca Chili
test; Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna

Santa Clara Bp. pe35 10 Feb., 1743
Manuela Esp. HL Juan Manuel Martin y Maria Chaves, Abiquiu
Pads: Bernardo de Luna y Margarita de Luna,

Santa Clara 18 August 1743
Juan Martin con Angela Trujillo
Test: Miguel Salazar y Margarita de Luna

Santa Cruz 5 Nove k744
Antonio de la Cerda y Luiza Trujillo
Pads; Pedro Martin y su Copna Margarita de Luna

Albuquerque frame 0157 3 Feb.l745
Joseph Martin y Josefa Romero, single espanoles
Test: Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna

Santa Clara p.51 June 1745
Juan Phelipe de Ojo Caliente HL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads: Antonio Martin y Maria Manuela Baldes

Santa Clara Bp. 8 Jan., 1747
Maria Rosa HL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads: Antonio Martin y Maria de Hererra

Santa Cruz 18 Feb.1749
Geronimo Martin con Gertrudis Salazar
Test: Pedro Martin y su copna Margarita de Luna

Santa Cruz Bpe pel32 13 Aug. 1750
Antonio HL Pedro Romero y Josefa Baldes
Pads; Pedro Martin Cerrano y Margarita de Luna

Santa Clara Bpe 26 Sept. 1750
Francisca HL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads; Cristobal Martin y Rosalia Baldes

Santa Fe Bp «Dpel9 April 1751
Juana Teresa HL Francisco Lubhan y Juana Trujillo
Pads: Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna

Santa Clara Bpe. 19 March 1752
Maria Rosa de los Reyes HL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads; Ignacio Baldes y Juana Martin.



Records of Margarita de Luna

Santa Clara Bp. 10 April 1754
Jose Maria HL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads: Joaquin de Luna y Isabel Montoya

Santa Clara Bp. p.82 1755
Buenaventuram Espanol de Chama HL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads: Ignacio Valdes y Juana Martin

San Juan Bp.l81 14 July 1756
Joseph Antonio HL Francisco Valdes y Gertrudis Martin
Pads: Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna

Santa Clara Bp. p.90 1757
Maria Josephita de Chama HL Miguel Antnnio Martin y Luisa Madrila
Pads; Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna

San Juan Bpe pel89 3 June 1757
Juana de la Luz HL Pedro Martin y Olaya de Tapia
Pads: Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna.

San Juan Bp. pe.233 2 March 1762
Ignacio Mariano HL Francisco Sanches y Isabel Pachecco
Pads: Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna

Santa Clara Bpe 1 April 1762
Mariana h de Josef Luhan y Isabel Martin
Pads; Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna

Santa Clara Bp. 29 Dec. 1766
Maria de la Luz, Chama HL Thomas Ortiz y Maria de los Reyes Martin
Pads; Cpte. Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna

Santa Clara Burials 12 May 1768
Pedro Martin Casada Margarita de Luna de Chama. Will, Bondsmen, Executors:
Francisco Valdes y Sanniago Martin. ( nothing further this record)

Surveyor General Records: Piedra Lumbre Grant Report 30,File 33,Reel 35.

Pe 68 Will of Pedro Martin, typed copy in Spanish. Owner not given.
Pedro names wife as Margarita de Luna, widow of Esteban Duran. Names
his 15 children with Margarita. Mentions land involving Joachin de Luna
and Joachin's mother. Pedro gives parents as Blas Martin and Rosa de
Vargase. Pedro mentions land in Ojo Caliente from his Father bordering
land of his brother Antonio. Mentions sons: Francisco Valdes, Gaspar

and Tomas Ortiz.
Twitchell II p.251 #657 15 to 28 Feb.1l770
Margarita de Luna has complaint against Salazars: Irrigation ditch.

Twitchell I p.157 #537 -

Antonio Salazar sells to Pedro Martin lands in the Corral de Piedra, 1750.
(The will of Pedro was made at the Coral de Pedra in 1768. He received the
Piedra Lumbre Grant 1766/67.
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Records of Joachin de Luna

Isleta Mar. p.18 6 July 1743
Joachin de Luna con Maria Torres
Pads: Antonio Baca y Dona Monica Chaves

Isleta 10 Septs. 1745
Miguel de San Juan Esp. EL Joachin de Luna y Angela Salazar
Pads; Alonzo Garcia y Maria Francisca.((Gallego))

Isleta 9 July 1747
Bernardo Paulo Esp. HL Joachin de Luna.
Pads: Cristobal Salazar y Josefa Lucero

Isleta 11 May 1751 (ONMF-Chavez pe.214)
Antonio Xavier HL Joachin de Luna y Angela Salazar

Pads:

San Felipe Pueblo 1773(ONMF=-Chavez p.215)
Tomas son of Joachin de Luna and Angela Salazar
con Margarita Antonia Serna (At Bernalillo)
Test:

Santa Clara Bp. 10 April 1754
Jose Maria HL Pedro Martin y Margarita de Luna
Pads: Joachin de Luna y Isabel Montoya

Santa Clara 1758
Nazarena de Chama H de Josef Salazar y Rosa de Hererra
Pads; Joachin de Luna y Angela Salazar

Santa Clara 1758
Juana Gertrudis H Bartolo Archuleta y Gertrudis Trujillo
Pads; Joachin de Luna y Angela Salazar

Surveyor General Records Piedra Lumbre Grant Report 30 File 33 Reel 35
P.69 Will of Pedre Martin Serrano 12 May 1768 included, typed copy in
Spanish:.."Ytt.declaro tener en este propio lugar la parte de Tierra y
Casa a Joachin de Luna, la que ubo por herencia de su Mugere...." etce.

Twitchell I p.240 #872 Estate Antonio de Salazar. Albuquerque 1768.

Francisco,Pablo,Cristobal Salazar, heirs;

Joachin de Luna, husband of Juana Angela Salazar, heir. Lands Corral de
Piedra. (( Pedro Martin bought lands of Antonio Salazar 1750, Corral de

Piedra, see Margarita de Luna Sheet.))



FAMILY GROUP NO. Jusband's full name; Joachin de Luna
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"CHILDREN - da mo yr _ Locality Gdpres Add. Info.
1) b- -dads Alonzo Garcia v
Miguel de San Jngﬁ E 0 Segt* 1%35 ﬂg.ﬁ:gnglggg.!!ﬁ llggg!!
spouse: § May
Catalina Valdes & d. :
2) b. ~ pads Cri=tobal Salazar y
Bernardo Paulo bap 9 July 1747 1sleta Josefa Lucero N
spouse: - m. see b heir ch.8 March 1773 Albnguerque 2.
Charezina Garcia i P X ; Bo2 .
3 - _b. pads 1L et
Antonio Xavier b b.a_P_T;Ll- _May 1751 Isleta(ONMF p,215) F-:" 7 - -
spouse: v B v o
o ol b z
!) bn ‘_ Ao
Thomas bap. n s : L
pouse Margarita _ _m. 1773 Bernalillo, racordgd San Felipe Pueblo Reca
Antonia Sena d. : :
5) b. 0 i ) A
__Ysidro

222222 bap. total involvment with same people as Miguel de Luna.
.pouse: Maria

- ds ma i d ~
de la Luz Valdes"-“_*jhﬂx”.xg_nq"‘Juﬂjl—122§———2759 xife

‘(T_) b . 1

~bap.
s.pouse: . 3

..4._
-

o T X

) i

7) b. |
I

1

n.pouse N

r) 5. o

Hpouse: Bl

- —p s 4
]

9)

spause: m. - oy o

10) T e i =

soouse: Tom.




FAMILY GROUP NO. Pusband's full name: Isidro de Luna

Sources: Ga mo yr _ locality Add. Info. on huﬁband
b.

bap.

m. 10 March 1776 Abiguiun Loose Doc. ArChi_ﬁf'T’*RiiI“SZWHHF“‘

" Test Lecacio m

Add.
¥ su Muger N
ns 77772 2222
His father liother Angela Salazar
Jife's liai = )
' e R
: -da mo yr _ Locality Add. Info. on wife
#ssoranddaughter of : b.
Margarita de Luna . bap.! ~
d. il
*+ dau of Margarita ~Add. *
de Luna ms ‘ '
- Her father L liother
"CHILDREN : da mo yr_ _ locality Giprts _ Add. Info.
1) b. _pads Manuel Vigil vy
Antonia Rosa _bap. 19 Sbre 1779 Abigquiu  Magdalena Baldes s*+ -
spouse: © m, . ' " "
d. .
> pa mingo Valdes,gingle
Maria Isna/PHfaela Bap-: 2L Kpril 1782 Abiquiu p.32 Juana Martin,Viuda **
spouse: . see bp, their ch, 11 March ]aaa Abiguin n 153
Manuel Sanchez
3) ' b- pads Manuel Salaiar y
Maria Loretta _bap. of Bbre 1795 Abiguiu p,.B8 Francisca Silva
spouse: Jose A

.m- 117 Aprdl 1815 Abiquiu p.?%. Qf Blanco

- =
Antonio Larranaga ° d. o -
‘!T b L 2 . =
Maria Antonia bap. _1777 Abiquiu X A :
spouse: m, ° | i %
—d - ~ ¥
57 b. ;4 = 3
bap. 7 = i B
Lspouse: s Ms ) 1 "
d. M p
o) B v . { ) .
~_ bap. 0 i s
spouse: m. oy t \ =
d. = i i L 1 =
7} __b. ! . { .
: bﬂp. = i S .d
s.pouse __n. 1 i = >
d. : ;
t) e b - . [
.Y bap. :___ i . r Y
spouse: i \ 1 '
- i A ! 5
9) I b. v .
| Sap. ] : R
spouses i m, ! — : SN
r— (.l- — ,—’— S
10) & by AT = -
T ba" . ; . 3
n0uUSe: 1 m. : i . "
e el T f i '




FAMNILY GROQUP NO. FPusband!s full name:
Sources: ca mo _yr Localiity Add. Info. on husband
ONMF-Chaves p.215 b.
*+ dau of Pedro

bap. 10 Sept,. ],2;;5 Isletn Pads: Alonzo Garcia % Ma, Franc¢isca.
Martin y Margar~_m. 8 May 17777Abiguju Test: Manuel Montes Vigil] ((Gallego ;

ita de Luna.. y Magdalena Baldes HL Ignacio Valdes E Juana Martin**.
) Add. he mar, 1., Juana Rael de Aguilar.Father Chavez says le marec
ms Catalina Baldes DM 1772, of Jemez Jurisdicion.

Higuel de San Juan de Luna

His fatherJoachin de Luna Tiothcr Angela Salazar
- m:mmm -~ - - |
Jife! ame:
{calle& Yas 3&‘ 1?:2 ktm:ed. Catalina Valdes STRar R3c8RqRll
Groom i®s son of

* Bernardo Sancheg -da mo yr  Llocality Add. Info. on wife
and defunta Barbara' b. .

Gallegos. Test: 5'Dap.
Francisco Salazar,

Jabriel Jaramillo W
Joaquin Naranjo, Md i3 %/773 M«/Wf\;a /5 %
Diego Velasquez Vac—;——-——-
'-ler father: 7.otﬁerm
CHILDREN da mo yr loc*lxty Gdprts Add., Into.
1) b. _pads_Juan Baldes y
Maria Gregoria _bap. 1779 Abigquiu Maria de las Nieves Martin
spouse: D om. : v N .
O ] . 2 i
2) b. ! pads Hm.g_._]_).;.ns;ﬁ:ln._uar.tin_x__.
Maria J ]
spouse: ;
T _ Don
7) " _b. 27 May _pads. Jose MartiﬁTy l
Maria de los Reyes:  bap.29 May 1785 Abiquiu p_ 45 ‘ Petrona Gonzales
spouse: - oma ! s
T [ i
4) b, 14 July ads Antonio Lopez ¥
Maria de Jesus bap. 16 July I'?BB Abiquiu p.EB LEeroﬁIma Trujillo
spouse: mae \ :
dl T_ _-‘ o
5) b. 1 ds ase)IManuel Martin
Margarita bap. 1792 -Abiquiu Manuela Quihtana
spouse: . M. ) IR :
d. . . &
O) b- 1 T ] S
Diego Antonio® " bap. H i
spouse: m.see Bp, their ch. Jose Maxidonio 1841 Abiquiu
Bibiana Sisneros d- i 1 : L
7) * b i ; v
M—MWMMS__
spouse d ﬂhi quiy p.728 :
- [ .
b) b— H []
Maria Bibiana g3 = | N
spouse: « @, 155 fmﬁmu r_. :
Jose Anto. Sanchéz d. T
9) b. g : "
bap. ) XL 2% H
spouse: Mo 3 . -
S i v .
10) i b, v ]

sDouse:

cpad.
Q-Bg
° vbc

{ed-d=do




- : Diego Antonio de Luna
FAMILY GROUP NO. pusbond's full name: g

Sources: ¢a_mo yr Locaiity Add. Info. on husband
b. .
bap. of Colorado Br, 1809
me. Abiguiu
d. a
Add.He and sister Luisa are rads Abiquiu Bp.l0 April 1809 Pe728
mns Miggel de §an Jua.n
His father de Luna hot.her Catalina Baldes
= W
; Wife's liaiden Name: Bipiana Sisneros
-da mo yr Locality Add. Info. on wife
i b. .
, bap.!
do )
0L Add . _
2KFzZFQP : __Maria Ignacia
- Ver father Nerio Sisneros .other-Quintana
"CHILDREN . da mo vr Loqiiltj'ﬁ_ Giprts __Add Info.
1) b. __E1 Rito _ pads Ped ] 1
Jose Maxidonio bap. 1841 Abiguiu a Maria Gabaldon
sSpouse: ‘o m. . e s *
- d. i i
z) : __,Biml_ALtOnio Gallegos
Maria Manuela bbp. 8 June 1835 Abiquin ngm&' T -
spouse: '
: d, ' N .
3)Mu~1a de los . _b- " Salbador PIReda y
3 ?1“__ ____.ba E B Qct. 1843 Abiguiu New Reg, ° chafa ﬁ?ﬁ; nes -
SPpou = m .
d . ‘ B

1) ] - b. - i ; P — L,
_Dhamaer  Tharag S A" | —" " a——
LpoOyUse : W m. ' 1 X

: = ‘\-s-c——.---_‘.vf 2 — ‘__

bap. » T

spouse: Sl s 1

d" >
0) 5. "%
- L
i
]
i
i
|
I

" bap.

s.pouse: m.
d-

7) b.
- bap.

s.pouse 1.

k) b

spouse:

9)

spouse m. - _ 1

10) bLh H e —
e :

soouse: v om. : e




io Salazar
FANILY GROUP NO. o N T e s i

Sources: Ga mo ¥yr 'ocality Add. Info. on husband
b.
bap.
m. 2 July 1735 San Felipe Neri p.ll no pads, no tesis.
d.22 0ct,1780 Santa Clara Bur,p,57 cassados con Barbara -Luna.

Add .Rec. Sac, Ext. Ufc. 0f Chama.
e probab

His fother antonio Salazar _ TiothcrMaria Torres -
+olawdf Wife's liaiden Name: Barbara de Luna (Mopi9ya,Sg an
¢5E8ndyans

,Amf S 3 gRES ndY

-da mo yr locality Add. Infou. on wife

#+s)Mother of Hargar--—.bb' s
ita de Luna, wife of +.22D-

d.
Mjgugl dg:.S?n ~fpag, . — T
' ms o e dabe . e
e ler athor Miguel de San Juan liother Isabel Montoya
CHILDREN : da ma vr anal1t} Giprts Add. Info.
1) b. Mother: Luna. ﬁégndﬁnénjﬂniﬂ_ﬁﬂlﬁzar v
s~ -Felicians 2 13 July 1736 Santa Cruz ,5& Iggbel Montoya *** :
spouse. : i
i d- : : -
2) . b. 'Mother:Muniz de Luna Jads Antonio Salazar y
_FMaria Rosa b2p-.4 Aug.1738 Santa Cruz - Franc:.sca Muniz de Luna .
spouse: M. .
T d. . : .
33 : b. Esp, Mother: Luna pad ﬁ,ﬁxgggz1g_ﬂa}tin Y, ;
Miguel de San Juam bap. 17 April 1750 Santa Clara Gertrudis tgrtin *
spouse: - ma. !
) NN S T
.g] b, Mother:Luna., Esp, Chama pads Francisco Valdes y
Francisca bap. 18 March 1752 Santa Clara :Gertrudis Martin **
spouse: _m. - { :
e = f ) T
5) Melchora b. Mother: Lunh. pads Cristobal Duran. o
. de_los_Reyes . ~bap/ Jan. 1756 Santa Clara - ;. !
spouse: . m- 1 k]
d- i v
0) b.Mother: Luna, JLﬁﬁ'JDSEDh Romero y s §pQ§g.
Luis Maria " " bap.l2 March 1759 Santa Clara i
Lpouse: . L = ' T
| Jaiw d- : = 4 =
7) __b. vads- Josefpha Bofnero‘ =
_ Casimi®o ; nmmuzﬁa.am_p;m;s.iua..
Lpousc 11. . -
. : -
z) ;__l?__Mni.hﬁmLunh_thm — - pads Cristobal Tafoya ¥y
Andrea _bap. Mwmwﬂaria-w&l_
spouse: m.
i 1 d. i
9) | b. 1 2 !
~2. Nicolss | bap. ) 1 '
SpOusSe: 3 s B i R i i T e A
r— dn . Y
10) Th e o e T 1
“bav. y ] :
n0usSe: « me 1 w '




Records of Barbara de Luna

Santa Cruz p.40 7?21 Dec.l735
Tomas, Naetural y H Joseph Martin y Catalina Salazar, legally married.
pads; Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara Montoya.

Santa Cruz Bpepelli 13 July 1736
Feliciana HL Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara Luna
pads; Antonio Salazar y Isabel Montoya

Santa Cruz 4 Aug. 1738
Maria Rosa HL Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara Muniz de Luna
Pads; Antonio Salazar y Francisca Muniz de Luna.

Santa Clara Bpe. pe2l1 12 Dec. 1742
Juana Gertrudis de PNC
Pads: Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara Luna

Banta Clara 17 April 1750
Miguel de San Juan HL Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara Luna
Pads: Gregorio Martin y Gertrudis Martin ((Ch. of Margarita de Luna))

Santa Cruz Mar. p.27 21 April 1751
Nicolas Salazar con Barbara Martin
Test: E1 Alferez Phelipe de Ribera y Barbara de Luna

Santa Clara 18 March 1752
Francisca Espe. Chama HL Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara Luna,.
Pads; Francisco Valdes y Gertrudis Martin.((dau Margarita de Luna))

Santa Clara 7 Jan. 1756
Melchora de los Reyes HL Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara Luna
pad: Cristobal Duran.

Santa Cruz Bp. p.l62 2 May 1756
Juan el Carmen HL Pedro Baptist de Ciivas y Antonia Maria Baca
Pads; Juan Antonio Salazar y Varbara Baca ?

Santa Clara 12 March 1759
Luis Maria H Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara.
Pads: Joseph Romero y su esposae.

Santa Clara Bpe p.60/112 12 April 1762
Casimiro H Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara Luna
Pad; Josepha Romero. :

Santa Clara Bp. pe63 3 Decs 1763
Andrea of Chama 4 days old H Juan Salazar y Barbara Luna
Pads: Cristobal Tafoya y Ana Maria.(Romero other rec.)

Santa Clara 17 Jan. 1767
Pablo, b. 10th of Chama HL Josef Salazar y Rosa Hererra
Pads: Josef (Juan Anto.) Salazar y Barbara de Luna.



Records of Barbara de Luna

Santa Clara Bp. p.77 8 Jan. 1769
Anna Esp. 5 days old HL Juan Manuel Salazar y Maria Norieaga ((Garcia))
Pads: Juan Salazar y Barbara de Luna

Santa Clara Burials p.57 22 Oct. 1780

Juan Antonio Salazar, Adult, cassados con Barbara Luna, of Chama
rec. Ex., Unce.



Records of Francisca de Luna

San Juan Bp. Pe34 11 Aug. 1732
Micaela HL Diego Cata y Juana Phomi?
Pads: Miguel Salazar y Francisca Luna

Santa Cruz Bpe pe28 13 Feb. 1734
Blas HI. Miguel de Salazar y Dona Francisca San Ju.
Pads: Antonio Salazar y Maria Torres.

Santa Cruz Bp. pe39 6 April 1735
Gregorio HL Francisco Arias y Juana Ererra
Pads: Miguel Salazar y Francisca de Luna

Santa Clara 15 May 1735
Juan Antonio PNC
Pads:Miguel Salazar y Francisca de Luna

Salathiel HL Miguel Salazar y Franciscaf//miédde Luna
Pads; Bartolome Fernandes de la Pedrera y Isabel Montoya

Santa Cruz Bpe. pe40 6 Oct. 1735 frame 31, ( ; )

Santa Cruz 4 Auge. 1738
Maria Rosa HL Juan Antonio Salazar y Barbara Muniz de Luna
Pads; Antonio de Salazar y Francisca Muniz deLuna

Santa Clara Bp. 12 Dec. 1749
Bibiana Esp de Chama HL Miguel Salazar y Francisca de Luna
Pads: Diego Lucero y Ana Maria Martin

Santa Clara Bp. Near 17 April 1750
Antonia Maria HL Miguel Salazar y Francisca de Luna
Pads: Antonio Abieta y Rosalia Luhan

Santa Clara Bpe. 6 Dece. 1752
Juana Micaela HL Miguel Salazar y Francisca de Luna
Pads: Pedro Sanchez y Micaela Quintana

Santa Clara 12 Febe. 1753
Miguel Antonio Esp of Abiquiu HL Geronimo Martin y Gertrudis Salazar
Pads: Miguel Salazar y Francisca de Luna

Santa Clara 13 Aug. 1755
Ana HL Miguel Salazar y Francisca de Luna of Chama
Pad: Pablo Salazar

Santa Clara Mare. pel4 21 March 1756

Josef Miguel HL Diego Lucero de Godoi y Ana Maria Martin of Ojo Caliente
con Josefa HL Miguel Salazar y Francisca de Luna , all espanoles.

Pads: Joachin de Luna y Juana Angela Salazar

Santa Clara 3 July 1757
Petra de Chama h Don Miguel Salazar y Dona Francisca de Luna
pads; Don Matheo Roibal y Dona Gregoria Baca.

Loose Documents Archdiocise of Santa Fe Reel 52 UNM
Abiquiu Bp. 3 April 1761

Simon Victoriano born 30 May HL Joseph Giron y Maria Victoria Mora,Abiquiu
Padrinos: Julian Salazar y Francisca de Luna,




FANILY GROUP NO.

Husband's full name:

Miguel Salazar

Sources:

Ga mo yr

Locality

b.

Add. Info. on hugband

bap.

d.

—

Add.
ns

~

His fathe r_&:—:tonio éalazar

Vife's l.,aiden Name:

liother Maria Torres

Francisca de Luna (San Juan,Mppiz,de

-da mo_yr

Locality

Add. Info. on wife

. - 1 b.
ggfn;ﬂhmkﬁa*d bap‘

Anm&u&ﬂ

JvM Add._

Her father Hig_l_l_el.:d_g_San Juan

liotherlsabel Montoya

CHILDREN da mo yr _locality Sdprts _ Add. Info.
1) b. t tor@é.&&':sr Y
Blas bap. 13 Feb. 1734 Santa Cruz Maria Torre
spouse: © m. : ’ ¢
. d~ <]
52 pads Bartolome Fernandes de,sPedrera
Salathiel 7K hbbp. 6 Oct, 1735 Santa Cruz p.40 Y 1sabel Hoﬂtoya (L)
spouse: . M. f
T ~ ;
3) . _b. Chama pads Diego Lucerd y -
__Bibiana _bap-12 Dec., 1749 Santa Clara _Apa Maria Martip
spouse: . M. f
d, . .
1) b. ads Antonio Abieta :
Antonia Maria bap. ca 17 April 1750 Santa Clara:Rosalia Luhan %
pouse: __m. i i | ‘ i
d. ) ek w -
%) b. - ads Pedro Sanchez y &
Juana Micaela bap, 6 Dec. 1752 Santa Clara Michaela Quintana
spouse: v s 3 i 3 ;
d- T 4
v) . IL_g'Pablo Salazar,
Ana QD 13 Aug. 252 Santa Clara i >
spouse: n. ! 1 ' 2
d- i I i o
7) i 1 — T ‘
Josefa % - bap. ) e i =
».pouse Jose M. 21 March 17563&:11;; Clar le. p.11+ pads: ,Joac‘ﬁin f Euna y
Miguel Lucero . azar
k) L b- ‘Chama _ pads Don Mathe :
Petra : bap- T3 July 1757 Santa Clara ona ﬁﬁ %
spouse: !
- ' d. )
9) 5. 1 : :
{ bap. ¥ R '
spouse: i m. 5 ' ? il
- : d‘ ‘ L =
10) o b ] B TR T
"ban. S : ;
S IOUSE: T m. i i

d-

- -




Records of Isidro de Luna

Abiquiu 1777
Juan de la Cruz h Antonio Atencio y Rosa de Gracia
Pads: Isidro de Luna y su muger Maria Concepcion Baldes((Ma. de la Luz.))

Abiquiu April 1778

Pascual(in margin) Salvador (in text) Martin, single of unknown parents
con Ana Maria Naranjo viudo de Salvador Marquez, Coyotes, todos vecinos.
pads; Isidro de Luna y su muger Maria de la Luz Baldes

Abiquiu 3 Oct. 1781
Maria Geronima h Jose Martin y Petrona Gonzales, vec. Esp.
pads; Isidro de Luna y Maria de la Luz Baldes

Abiquiu p.30 28 Jan. 1782

Ana Maria Paula HEL Luis Salazar y Ana Maria Martin Esp. vec.
Pads: Isidro de Luna y Maria Luz Baldes

Test: Isidro y Manuel Indios del Pueblo.

Abiquiu 16 Feb., 1782

Valentin Polycarpo HL Juan Manuel Salzazar y Maria de los Reyes Martin
Pads: Antonio Lucrecio Martin y Quiteria Andrea Garcia de Norriega
Test: Don Santiago Martin y Isidro de Luna.

Abiquiu June 1790

Juan Ignecio HL Pedro Ignacio Sanchez y Manuela Vigil

con Maria Guadalupe Baldes HL Bernardo Baldes y Manuela de Jesus Subaso
Test: Gregorio Villpando, Isidro de Luna,Jose Ignacio Gallego./((Suaso))



FAMNILY GROUP NO. Pusband's full name: Joseph Romero

Sources: : ca mo yr Localiity Add. Info. on hugband
1750 Census Albug, ——2--8&e 33 in 1750, Spanish e :
# 129 bap. _
mw‘w"‘ a. ;
Add. ,

.
ns

de
Ia{’ ::1: fatlh.el.‘d - liother
' : ife's liaiden Name:
o ,M’/ AT 5 Manuela de Luna
' -da mo yr  locality Add. Info. on wife ——
! b. age 30 in 1750 Spanish ’
* Baltazar Romero ,b3p.
was briefly bro-in-i 4 .
law of Cpt. Anto. .ﬁdd*Anto. Martin y Manuela Valdes are pads for a& child oi

Montoya __.'E_._Bﬁznﬂ.xd_o_d_evla_“_na and Anta. Quintana 1746,0f Abig. S. Clara.
o d Her father m,wy,& s‘":!h,, liother & J
"CHILDREN : da mo yr  locdity V Gdpres Add. Info.
1) b. age 13 in 1750 .
Miguel Antonio bap. o -
spouse: © m. . + ; '
IR 4 R =
2) - b. - age 11 in 1750 Pade Antonlo Martin y
Antonio “B8p:. 21 July i74] Santa Clara p.Z‘? “Manuela VAIGES ;
spouse: C m. ' b
. d- 3 “’ 2 ‘.
)T v bl age 2 3“ JZEQ TIIH " 1 v
Bicente . bap. 3o :
spouse: ; mo | \
4. *
1) b. Age 7 in 1750 TWIN i B
Ignacio bap. :
.pouse: __M. = { ik
(l k. oo - .-
59 b.age 5 in 17 ; = v v
Francisco Pablo bap. i e !
.pouse: . m- \ 1
d. - =
o) b, Age 3 in 1750 ' x
Joseph Candelaria pap. i i : >
r.pouse: __m. _ I . ) kS
d. .- = 9 .
7) __b. B A i :
Jaoachin - bap. i v : L B -
spouse __m. 1

5 d 19 Octa 1741 Santa Cruz Burials pa3l

_Bartolo bap Pap- 5 5 Sept. I'ZSE San Fellpe féfs '.B.%“ ' ! ;

spouse:
| d. ' i 1
9) I b. t s 1+ v . sa s
bap. ) - ! }
Spouses Me - ' v
d. L -
1) i B 1 =
T ban. ) B : j
Loouse: 3 e Y M
i ik e i = '




l : Phell de Luma
FANTILY GROUP NO. Pusband's full name: pe

Sources: cda mo vyr . Localit iod. Tafo. on hu-band e
ONMF-Chaves pp. 215.——%—— L iy %
216 .

gy au;}fb salia Vallejos

2%4”,.‘, = Jfé-rm.l. MMMWJMJMtOuO Chaves and
1765 "———w QD Add. his mother Antonia Bacu

7 ms

In 1750 Census Belen His faother -Miguel de San Juan J,other l5abel Montoya
Phelipe is in the Jife's Lai . e

house of Joaquin de Luna Wife's Laiden Name: parpara Iturrietta .

#'éd 8 e 'b_________rother_. -da mo yr Locality Add. Info. on wife

A‘;W e

ZZ‘M !’i";&?g”ﬁgd TPl IRl - }8, 000U Fduand o A Fslwmsd
ook msy M&W 23 4sph /17 73, Ehwdny Ecpanills,

7

e Her father other
CHILDREN : : da mo yr Loq:_x_.l:;t = Gdprts Add, 1Info.
= = qami__ ]
__Framcisco - baLQ July 1255 sleta 4. .
spouse: c_m. ; 2 . 7 ‘
i d— : o i
2) (Jose) :
Tomas Antonio Iap.. 28 Dec. 1765 Isleta  Uwasta, /i (¢
spouse: * e 1# Sept. 1799 Tome ' '

Ma,. Paula Chaves d.

Juan Dionisio bap e ;
spouse: Barbarn " m. 2% Hnrch 1795 ,oa. r P A
Antonia Romero /(Y d 5

45 b. -
Juan bap. i : - i
npouse: Maria Guad-m. 15 June 1782 Isleta \ i3
nllpo Garcia-Jurad0d. o - i
5) b. T i o T

Pedro Becumdo bap,
~pouse: Joaquina = m. 23 May 1802 Isleta

- 44

Aguirre d. By
v) Be 4. ] ) 55
Manuel " "bap. i i -
w D L a. . . e
S 2 S—— e
7) _b. 1 o . :
—_ —bap. E B ™
+.pouse Barbara _ .15 Feb, 118, Ill.t-l - e
Aragon —id. -
t) 1 b’ s ! .
Manuela bap. , . r M
spouse: JOBS " m. 16 Oct. 11!1‘!‘1‘ T 3 :
____Torres d. 1
9) T b.19 Sept. 1 sle
Ma, Guadalwpe |Sap. (a//id Muledaa.
spouses Me - .
dh .
10) X . b
Loouse: MR

b Oistions & Bibiop oo i pg Bpilemiocet




FAMILY GROUP NO.

Pusband's full némex S

Sources:

Ga mo yr localiity Add. Info. on husband

b.

bap.

m. 15 June 1782 Isleta

d.

Add.
ns

_RBarbara
liother Iturietta
Maria Guadalupe Garcia-Jurado

His fatherPhelipe de Luna -
Wife's liaiden Name:

da mo yr Locality

! b.

Add. Info. on wife

. bap.

d.

“Add.
ms

Her father lother

"CHILDREN

da mo yr angiity Gipris

).)Maria Barbara dg b-

1a Encarnacion

_Add. Info.

bap.
spouse: - m

e O-Plaza las Vacas  Pads Joge 58
zmewﬁwa Paula Chavez -

3

. d-

-

T

2y

Jose Tomas =

=1 b.
b

25 Plaza de las Vacas Pads Joaquin Castillo y Bu esposa

ap

spouse: m

25 Dec,.1796 Tome p.4L3  Ana Maria Andrea Vallejos,Belen

d.

3) b.

—— -

1

- bap-

spouse: m. |

&

d.

1) b.

A T TF

baET

Lpouse: m.

d.

5) b.

0

bap.

“~pouse: m -

o ==

d.

0) be

" bap.

e .

Hphouse:

55 B OO 1

7)

s.pouse

&)

Housea:

9)

spnuse

IU) [

souse: i




FAMILY GROUP NO. Fusband's full name: Mariano de Luna | |
Sources: Ga mo_yr Locaiity Add. Info. on husband ~
b. :
bap.
m. 15 Feb, 1789 Igleta :
d. P N
Add. _ ;
= Barbara
His father Phelipe de Luna liother Iturietta
== — "1

WVife'!s liaid N 3
: ki Maria Barbara Aragon

-da mo yr Locality Add. Info. on wife
! bo . :
“bap. T
d.
Add.
ms ° .
. Her father e liother
_CHILDREN ' da mo yr _ locality Giprts __ Add. Info.

1) b. 8, Plaza de las Vacas,Pads Bartolo Pind y su esposa _
Jose Antonio “bap. 12 Jan, 1800 Tome p.g'j —_Antonia Josefa Torres,los Chaves
spouse: S : . . 3 :
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Rosa de Luna

New Mexico Boots Ltd. by Fray Angelico Chavez.
Vol VII, p. 1278, 22 Mar 1729 (#6) Santa Fe or
Bernalillo.

Miguel Montoya (26) Presidio soldier, son of
Regidor Salvador Montoya, native of New Mexico,
deceased, and Dona Manuela Carcia de la Riva.
native of Mexico City:; and Dona Rosa de Luna of
El Rio Abajo of unknown parents, widow of Jose
Silva. Testigos: Juan Manuel Cherinos. Notary
of Santa Fe, Andres de la Paz (36) and Antonio
Duran y Armi jo.

i by Fray Angelico
Chavez, p. 288: Jose Silva married Rosa Baca (no
source shown): p. 289: Fray Chavez writes that
Jose Silva was brother in-law of Antonio Vallejos
who married Micaela Silva and that Jose Silva's
wife Rosa Baca died on 9 Jun 1727, San Felipe de
Neri Burials. This must be the source of Rosa's
name but that 1727 is the death year of Jose Silva.



Maria (Rosa?) de San Juan

New Mexico Boots l.td. by Fray Angelico Chavez,
Vol. II, p. 307, Marriage Investigation:
1726 or 1727 #15, Bernalillo.
Juan de Chaves (23) and Dona Maria de San Juan (14)
(Incomplete)
Testigos: Miguel Montoya, Notary
Diego Padilla (37) of Isleta
Modesto Garcia (20 or 26)
Pair married 8 Dec 1726 with testigos:
Miguel Montoya* and Juana Baca*
(*Miguel Montoya is very probably a first cousin of
the bride, nephew of Isabel Montoya. Juana Baca
would be the grandmother of the bride.)

New Mexico Roots l.td. by Fray Angelico Chavez,
Vol. IX, p. 1776 (cross indexing)

1727 (#15) Maria Rosa de San Juan and Juan de
Chaves (q.v.) (This may be an error.)



GREGORIA BACA-LUNA

San Felipe de Neri Baptisms, 27 December 1733
Maria Antonia, daughter of Pedro Romero and
Gregoria Baca
Padrinos: Don Diego Borrego and Dona Antonia Baca

San Felipe de Neri Marriages., 21 March 1734
Miguel Montoia* and Lucia de Chaves
Padrinos: Pedro Romero and Dona Gregoria Baca
(*Miguel was married to Rosa de Luna in 1729.)

San Felipe de Neri Baptisms, 24 June 1735
Juan Antonio., son of Pedro Romero and
Gregoria Baca
Padrino: Felipe Baca

NEW MEXICO ROOTS. LTD.. by Fray Angelico Chavez., Vol.
IX, p. 1584, 10 December 1762, Tome. #10: Miguel Severiano
(23), Spanish, son of Capt. Don Pedro Romero and Dona
Gregoria Luna, deceased. and Ana Maria Maldonado (16).
daughter of Sr. Juan Maldonado and Sra. Maria Catarina
Vallejo. Witnesses: Mateo Pino. Notary: Don Diego Antonio
Sanchez, 36; Sr. Francisco Silva, 32.

NEW MEXICO ROOTS. LTD.. by Fray Angelico Chavez, Vol.
IX. p. 1584, 22 January 1767, Tome. #15: Jose Antonio Romero
(23). Spanish, of San Gabriel de las Nutrias. son of Capt.
Don Pedro Romero and Dona Gregoria Luna, and Juana Salas
(18), of same place. daughter of Jose Salas and Maria
Barbara Aragon. Witnesses: Mateo Pino. Notary: Antonio
Montoya (35); Jose Silva (25).
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THE OTHER LUNA FAMILY-APPENDIX

JOSEFA BACA AND JUAN ANTONIO GARCIA

The Josefa Baca who purchased land from Ysabel Montoya
is called the widow of Juan Antonio Garcia. Fray Chavez in
ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES, p. 141, states that Josefa
Baca never married.

Bernalillo Marriages, 8 September 1701
Juan Antonio Garcia and Josefa Baca
Witnesses: Don Fernando de Chaves and his wife,
Lucia Hurtado.

Bernalillo Baptisms, 5 June 1702
Maria Magadalena*, legitimate daughter of Manuel
Baca and Maria de Salazar.
Padrinos: Juan Antonio Garcia and Juana Baca

(*This Magdalena is the second child of this name
in the family. She was murdered by her second husband. Juan
Marquis and Xavier Baca. See SPANISH ARCHIVES OF NEW MEXICO
by R. E. Twitchell, Vol. II, #437.)

Bernalillo Baptisms, 20 August 1703
Maria Antonia. Spanish. legitimate daughter of
Salvador de Almazan and Magdalena (no surname).
Padrinos: Alonzo Garcia and Josefa Baca.

There is no death record for Juan Antonio Garcia up to
1712 when the early Bernalillo burial records end.
JUAN ANTONIO GARCIA

The only two Juan Antonio Garcias in the 1692 Census of
Guadalupe del Paso were the following:

In Pueblo del Paso:

Capt. Juan Garcia de Norriega, Alguacil Mayor of
the Cabildo, married to Francisca Sanchez y Ynigo.

Three sons: Juan Antonio, 11
Francisco. 7
Joseph, 5
One daughter: Maria
and,
Sargento Major Alonzo Garcia, widower, has five

children: Juan Antonio. 15; Alonso, 14: Luis,
10; Vizente. 5; and Juan. 5.



THE OTHER LUNA FAMILY-APPENDIX

JUANA BACA, DAUGHTER OF JOSE BACA

In ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES. Fray Angelico Chaves
discusses Juana Baca on page 141. Juana was a niece of
Ignacio Baca and an orphan of Jose Baca, who was murdered at
Guadalupe del Paso. In 1693 Juana Baca returned to New
Mexico with her mother, Josefa Pachecco, whose brother,
Silvestre had murdered Jose Baca. Juana Baca later married
Nicolas Ortiz II. On p. 249 we are told that Juana Baca had
an illegitimate daughter. Ana Maria Baca, before she married
Nicolas Ortiz II on 12 November 1702 and that Juana and
Nicolas were "padrinos™ for Apache baptisms in Bernalillo in
1705.

A very interesting document is in the SPANISH ARCHIVES
OF NEW MEXICO, Vol. I, No. 964, in the English transalations
at the New Mexico State Archives. One Jose Antonio de la
Fuente of Santa Fe sued to recover more of his mother’s
estate. His mother is Ana Maria Baca. daughter of Juana
Baca. The suit took place on 27 July 1743 in Santa Fe and
states that Ana Maria Baca was married for a year and a half
to soldier, Jose Griego of Santa Fe, who died. The couple
had a daughter. Petrona. before they married., and this child
died young. Fuente was conceived and born to Ana Maria
after Griego’'s death and is a grandson of Juana Baca who is
married to Nicolas Ortiz II. Fuente has no descendants.

Dona Juana Baca lists and describes her daughter’'s
pitiful estate. It contains only clothing and effects she
used in the "14 years she lived.” Of note were a brown
petticoat with gold lace and two religious relics. Fray
Chavez writes on p. 249 of ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES
that Ana Maria Baca died at age 26 on 27 June 1729, as
recorded in the Santa Fe burial records.

Juana Baca states that Ana Maria was three years old
when Juana married Nicolas Ortiz in 1702. Juana Baca states
that she gave dowers only to her legitimate heirs by Ortiz
and that she raised Jose de la Fuente. Fuente says he has a
piece of property from Juana Baca and Nicolas Ortiz but that
he worked for his upkeep until marrying four years earlier.
Juana Baca replied that she could give no more to Fuente as
what he received was taken from the inheritance of the Ortiz
heirs. Further, Ana Maria left no bequests as she was
unconcious throughout her illness until her death.

Another document in the SPANISH ARCHIVES OF NEW MEXICO,
Vol. I. No. 181, and in the English translation. tells of
the sale of a house near the church in Santa Fe built by one
Juan Baca and his sons. Dona Juana Baca, widow of Capt
Nicolas Ortiz. and two sons. Francisco and Antonio Ortiz. in
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1746, sold the house at Royal sale to Sergeant-Major Don
Joachin Codallos y Babal. The house was very close to the
church cemetary and had a "main door to the street that goes
to the parish church.”

In NEW MEXICO ROOTS. LTD., by Fray Angelico Chavez,
Vol. I, p. 155, we find the marriage investigation (D.M.. or
Diligencias Matrimoniales) of Josefa Pachecco and Jose Baca,
the parents of Juana Baca.

16 August 1684, #1, Real de San Lorenzo
(Near Guadalupe del Paso.)

Jose Baca (18B). native of New Mexico, son of Capt.
Cristoval Baca and Dona Ana Moreno de Lara, natives of New
Mexico, living in San Lorenzo. and Josefa Perez Pachecco
(16), native of Santa Fe. daughter of Juan Perez Pachecco
and Antonia de Arratia. Testigos (Witnesses): Antonia
Sisneros (23), Francisco Gonzales (33). Sebastian Gonzales
(40), Blas Griego (35), Luis Duran (30), Francisco Lopez
(45), all of San Lorenzo.

The last three knew the bride since her birth.
The pair married on 19 November 1684 with Capt. Francisco
Xavier and his wife Dona Francisca Baca as witnesses.

SPANISH ARCHIVES OF NEW MEXICO by R. E. Twitchell. Vol.
II, p. 76. #45: El Paso del Norte, 3 July 1687 to 9 Sept.
1690. Sylvestre Pachecco, soldier of the Presidio of San
Felipe y Santiago. Janos. Trial for killing Jose Baca.
Writs, petitions. testimony, dismissal. acquittal. Names
many testifying. See also ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES by
Fray Angelico Chavez. p. 252, for parents of Sylvestre
Pachecco and his sister Josefa. Josefa alive in tally of
1707-1708 with second husband Juan Tafoya.

ORIGINS OF NEW MEXICO FAMILIES by Fray Angelicp Chavez.
p. 291. Juan Tafoya Altamirano of Real Talpujagua married
Josefa Pachecco. widow of Jose Baca. Josefa died before
1701(?) when Tafoya was charged with stealing oxen and
defrauding his step-daughter, the wife of Nicolas Ortiz II.

SPANISH ARCHIVES OF NEW MEXICO by R. E. Twitchell, Vol.
II, p. 142, #134b. 3 October 1707, Juan Tafoya. Suit
against him by Alferez Nicolas Ortiz, relative to the taking
away of an Indian captive.

NEW MEXICO ROOTS., LTD.. by Fray Angelico Chavez, Vol.
X, p. 1857, 6 March 1708. #3. Santa Fe: Juan Tafoya
Altamirano, native of El Real del Talpujagua. widowed of
Josefa Pachecco..... petitions to marry Maria. daughter of
Fernando Duran y Chaves and Lucia Hurtado. Clara de Chaves,
publicly known as bastard of Fernando Duran y Chaves, stated
groom had had relations with her. Groom denies charge.
Outcome not stated.
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